 STATE

- UNIVERSITY
SYSTEM
of FLORIDA

Vo Bosarn of Governors

AGENDA
Facilities Commiitee
Conference Call
Dial-in Number: 888-808-6959
Conference Code: 8502450
June 20, 2011
2:00 p.m.

Call to Order Governor Charlie Edwards

Meeting Minutes, March 24, 2011 Governor Edwards

Fixed Capital Outlay Budget Transfer Flexibility Mr. Chris Kinsley

Bond Resolutions Mr. Kinsley

A.

Resolution of the Board of Governors Authorizing the Division of Bond
Finance of the State Board of Administration of Florida to Issue Debt on
behalf of the Florida International University to Finance the Construction of
a Student Residence and Related Improvements on the Main Campus, FIU

. Resolution of the Board of Governors Authorizing the Division of Bond
Finance of the State Board of Administration of Florida to Issue Debt on
behalf of the Florida International University to Finance the Construction of
a Parking Garage on the Main Campus, FIU

. Resolution of the Board of Governors Authorizing the Issuance of Debt by

the University of Florida Financing Athletic Association to Finance the
Construction, Renovation and Equipping of various Capital Improvements
to certain Athletic Facilities on the Main Campus, UF

Committee 2011-12 Work Plan Mr. Kinsley

Concluding Remarks and Adjournment Governor Edwards







STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Facilities Committee
June 20, 2011

SUBJECT: Minutes of Meeting held March 24, 2011

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION

Approval of minutes of the meeting held on March 24, 2011, at Florida State University,
Tallahassee.

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF GOVERNORS ACTION

N/A

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Board members will review and approve the minutes of the meeting held on March 24,
2011, at Florida State University, Tallahassee.

Supporting Documentation Included: Minutes: March 24, 2011

Facilitators/Presenters: Chair Charlie Edwards






MINUTES
STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
FACILITIES COMMITTEE
FLORIDA STATE UNIVERSITY
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
March 24, 2011

Chairman Charlie Edwards convened the Board of Governors Facilities
Committee meeting at 8:55a.m., March 24, 2011, in the Alumni Center at Florida State
University. The following members were present: Dean Colson, Dick Beard, Frank
Martin, Tico Perez, Gus Stavros, John Temple and Rick Yost.

1. Call to Order

Governor Edwards called the meeting of the Facilities Committee to order. He
stated that he was going to re-arrange the order of the agenda items and asked Chris
Kinsley to begin with the bond resolution approvals.

2. Bond Resolutions

Mr. Kinsley reviewed the two requests before the Committee for approval from
the University of Central Florida.

A. Resolution of the Board of Governors Authorizing the Division of Bond
Finance of the State Board of Administration of Florida to Issue Debt on
behalf of the University of Central Florida to Finance the Construction of
Student Residences and Related Improvements, Main Campus, UCF

Mr. Kinsley presented the University of Central Florida request to issue
debt. He stated that the approval would be contingent upon the University of
Central Florida obtaining an approved Campus Development Agreement
with Orange County but that early verbal negotiations indicated they were
likely to reach a no cost agreement. Mr. Beard moved to approve the
resolution, as presented, and the motion was seconded by Mr. Perez. All
members voted in favor.

B. Resolution of the Board of Governors Authorizing the Division of Bond
Finance of the State Board of Administration of Florida to Issue Debt on



MINUTES: FACILITIES COMMITTEE MARCH 24, 2011

behalf of the University of Central Florida to Finance the Construction of a
Parking Garage, Main Campus, UCF

Mr. Kinsley reviewed the debt request from the University of Central
Florida for their Parking Garage VII. Governor Beard made a motion to
approve the resolution, as presented, and the motion was seconded by Mr.
Colson. All members voted in favor.

C. A Resolution of the Board of Governors Authorizing the Issuance by the
University of South Florida Financing Corporation of Debt to Finance the
Renovation of the USF Arena and Convocation Center on the Tampa campus
of the University of South Florida

Mr. Kinsley presented the University of South Florida request to issue
debt to renovate their Arena. He said that it was not common for the Board to
receive debt requests for renovations and that this particular proposal was
challenging because it was not in conformance with the Board’s Debt
Management Guidelines. He stated that while the Project was not self-
supporting in the first years of operation, the University had tried to augment
the revenues as much as possible with other allowable sources, which
included a guarantee from the USF Foundation. Chair Edwards
acknowledged that there was some concern from members about the
Foundation guarantee and the sufficiency of their resources. Governor Beard
spoke in favor of the project and explained that he thought the Foundation
pledge was stable and the proposal made sense. Governor Perez said he was
very concerned about the prior commitments of the Foundation and
recommended the approval be deferred until a financial advisor’s opinion
could be provided as required by the Guidelines. Board members asked the
University staff to review the other financial guarantees of the Foundation
resources. USF staff stated that their Foundation had an extensive process for
assessing risk and a schedule of commitments so that they would not over
commit. They stated that their University Board of Trustees had been
working on the Project for many years and had fully vetted the plan. They
also said that the issues at the arena were massive and needed quick
intervention to avoid closure of the facility. They said they were unable to
phase the Project and that the Arena was vital to the operations of the
University community. Governor Colson suggested the Foundation set aside



MINUTES: FACILITIES COMMITTEE MARCH 24, 2011

an amount of money to provide assurance to the Board that the debt
obligations could be met. Board members agreed that a $20 million set aside
amount would be acceptable until all of the facilities guaranteed by the
Foundation were operational and an income stream was proven. Mr. Perez
again stressed that the Project was nonconforming and was also being
brought to the Board in an urgent manner. He said he thought the request
was unreasonable and approval by the Board would send the wrong
message. The members discussed the possibility of deferring their approval
for 20-30 days until an opinion from a financial advisor could be provided.
Members agreed that they would rather approve it with the set aside amount
and require the University to come forward for a reduction of that amount at
a later date. Colson moved to approve the resolution subject to the
Foundation setting aside $20 Million to guarantee principal and interest on
the debt with the University having the right to come back at a later date and
request a decrease in the set aside amount based on the opinion of a financial
advisor. The revised resolution passed with Governors Perez and Martin
voting against.

3. 2011-2012 SUS Fixed Capital Outlay Budget Request

A PECO Discussion Topics

Mr. Kinsley stated that Board staff had met with the University
Facilities Planners and CFO’s to come up with some suggestions for
giving the universities some flexibility for spending basic maintenance
dollars, since PECO allocations would most likely be scarce in the
upcoming year. He reviewed the ideas for modifying legislation and also
Board regulations. The committee discussed the options and Governor
Parker suggested supporting bullets 1, 2 and 3 on the legislative action
and bullet 1 on the Board action list. She asked Vikki Shirley and Mr.
Kinsley to work on bringing forward specific amendments to the Board
regulations. It was moved by Colson to forward bullets 1, 2 and 3 on the
legislative action to the Board Legislative Committee. The motion was
seconded by Governor Perez and all members voted in favor.

B. Legislative Budget Request Items

Chair Edwards called on Mr. Kinsley to review the 2011-2012 Fixed
Capital Outlay Request. Mr. Kinsley reviewed the attachments for each
section of the Fixed Capital Outlay Budget and noted that most of the



MINUTES: FACILITIES COMMITTEE MARCH 24, 2011

changes since the request approved in January were technical in nature.
He stated that the Courtelis Matching List was being included again with
no changes to emphasize its importance. Governor Perez made a motion
to approve the budget and the motion was seconded by Mr. Beard. All
members voted in favor.

4. Concluding Remarks and Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:15 a.m., March 24,
2011.



STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Facilities Committee
June 20, 2011

SUBJECT: Fixed Capital Outlay Budget Transfer Flexibility for Fiscal Year 2011-12

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION

Review the 2011-2012 SUS Fixed Capital Outlay Budget and authorize the Chancellor to
approve limited changes as necessary, to include the waiver of specified sections of
Board Regulation 9.007 State University Operating Budgets to provide funding
flexibility for emergency maintenance and infrastructure repairs.

Discuss PECO forecast and university maintenance challenges.

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF GOVERNORS ACTION

Article IX, Subsection 7, Florida Constitution

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The final Fixed Capital Outlay appropriations for the State University System of
Florida, totaling $22,338,167, provides limited resources for the institutions to maintain
their campus facilities and effectuate any emergency repairs that may be required. This
issue was previously discussed in March. No additional flexibility was provided during
2011 Session, and the final appropriations were indeed more limited than in any
previous year.

Board Regulation 9.007 describes the restrictions on the E&G operating funds
appropriated by the state, and any unused balances which must be carried forward by
the universities to meet the 5% reserve requirement, as well as to meet cash flow needs.
For example, funds appropriated from state lottery proceeds are typically not disbursed
until later in the fiscal year and some proceeds may be carried forward into the fiscal
period. Following the March Board discussion, the universities have informally
indicated that having flexibility to utilize carry forward to provide for limited
emergency repairs and maintenance would be useful, especially in handling
unforeseeable contingencies. Given the limited amount of PECO maintenance funding,
the universities could be allowed to use E&G carryforward, with notification to the SUS



Budget Office to ensure that 1) the proposed use comports with statutory restrictions,
and 2) the transfer is properly recorded in the SUS budgetary records.

The current PECO forecast for 2012-13 is minimal, while succeeding years are more
robust. However, the higher level of funding presumes that the state will exercise the
maximum PECO bonding capacity. Given Governor Scott’s concerns on the advisability
of future expansion of state debt issuance, maintenance of our existing inventory will
continue to be a significant concern.

Supporting Documentation Included: Board Regulation 9.007, State
University Operating Budgets

Facilitators/Presenters: Chris Kinsley



9.007 State University Operating Budgets.

(1) Each university president shall prepare an operating budget for approval by
the University Board of Trustees, in accordance with instructions, guidelines, and
standard formats provided by the Board of Governors.

(2} Hach University Board of Trustees shall adopt an operating budget for the
general operation of the university as prescribed by the regulations of the Board
of Governors. The University Board of Trustees-ratified operating budget is
presented to the Board of Governors for approval. Hach university president
shall implement the operating budget of the university as prescribed by
regulations of the Board of Governors, policies of the University Board of
Trustees, provisions of the General Appropriations Act, and data reflected within
the Allocation Summary.

(3} The operating budget of each state university shall represent the following
budget entities:

{a} Bducational and General (E&G)- reporis actual and estimated year
operafing revenues and expenditures {actual year expenditures should
include year-end encumbrances) for all E&G funds, including: General
Revenue, Student and Other Fees, Educational Enhancement Trust Fund
(Lottery), Phosphate Research Trust Fund - and including the following
previously-appropriated trust funds: Experiment Station Federal Grant,
Experiment Station Incidental, Extension Service Federal Grant, Extension
Service Incidental, UF-HSC Incidental, and UF-Health Science Center
Operations and Maintenance,

1. The H&G budget funds the general instruction, research, public service,
plant operations and maintenance, student services, libraries,
administrative support, and other enrollment-related and stand-alone
operations of the universities. Universities shall accumulate ending
fund balances for activities such as, but not limited to, a contingency
for unfunded enrolment growth, potential budget reductions,
anticipated increases in university operations, and prior vear
encumbrances. At any time the unencumbered available balance in the
E&G fund of the University Board of Trustees approved operating
budget falls below five (5) percent of the approved total, the president
shall provide a written notification and explanation to the Board of
Governors.

2. Expenditures from any source of funds by any university shall not
exceed the funds available. No expenditure of funds, contract, or
agreement of any nature shall be made that requires additional
appropriation of state funds by the Legislature unless specifically
authorized in advance by law or the General Appropriations Act.



3.

The following units are required to report under this budget entity;
State Universities
UF-Institutes of Food and Agricultural Science
UF Health Science Center
USF Medical Center
FSU Medical 5chool
UCF Medical School
FIU Medical School

(b} Contracts and Grants - reports actual and estimated year revenues,
expenditures, and positions for university functions which are supported
by foundations, various state and federal agencies, local units of
governments, businesses and industries.

{c) Auxiliary Enterprises - reports actual and estimated year revenues,
expenditures, and positions for self-supporting functions such as, but not
limited to parking services, housing, bookstore operations, and food
services,

(d} Local Funds - reports actual and estimated vear revenues, expenditures,
and positions for the following specific areas:

1.

Student Activities ~ revenues genervated primarily from the activity
ard service fee each university is authorized to charge its students as a
component of the mandatory fee schedule. Activities commonly
supported by these revenues include student government, cultural
events, student organizations, and intramural/club events.
Intercollegiate Athletics - revenues generated from the student athletic
tee that each university is authorized to collect as a component of the
mandatory fee schedule, and from other sources including ticket sales,
radio/ TV, bowl games, and tournament revenues.

Concession Fand - revenues generated from various vending activities
located around the campuses. The University’s budget must reflect the
various deparbments/activities on each campus which benefit from
receipt of these funds.

Student Financial Aid - revenues received by the university for loans,
grants, scholarships, and other student financial aid. Expenditures of
these funds must be reported by activities such as externally-funded
loans, student scholarships, need-based financial aid, academic-based
financial aid, and athletic granis/scholarships.

Self-Insurance Programs - revenues received by the university from
entities and individuals protected by the self-insurance programs.

This budget must reflect expenditures related to the administration of
the self insurance programs and the judgments or claims arising out of
activiies for which the self-insurance program was created.



(¢) Faculty Practice Plan - related to the activities for the state universities’
medical schools and health centers. This budget must be designed to
report the monetary level of clinical activity regarding the fraining of
students, post-graduate health professionals, and medical faculty.

{4} The operating budgets of each university shall represent the following:

(a) The university’s plan for utilizing the resources available through direct or
continuing appropriations by the Legislature, allocation amendments, or
from local sources including tuidon. The provisions of the General
Appropriations Act and Allocation Summary will be taken into
consideration in the development and preparation of the E&G data.

(b} Actual prior-year revenues, expenditures {including prior-year
encumbrances), and positions (excluding E&G carry forward amounts e
expended, except on Schedule I reports) and current-year estimated
revenues, expenditures, and posttions.

(c) Assurance that the universities are in compliance with general legislative
intent for expenditure of the appropriated state funds and with the BOG
guidelines and priorities.

(5) Interest earnings resulting from the investment of current-year educational
and general appropriations are considered to be of the same nature as the
original appropriations, and are subject to the same expenditure regulations as
the original appropriations. E&G interest earnings are not to be utilized for fixed
capital outlay expenditures. Interest earnings resulting from invested carry
forward funds are considered to be additions to the university’s carry forward
balance, and are not reported in the annual operating budget with the exception
of the manually-prepared estimated year E&G Schedule I reports.

Anticipated interest earnings for the estimated year from invested F&G funds
should not be included when building the detailed operating budget schedules.
Estimated year E&G inferest earnings and planned expenditures of these funds
should only be reported on the manually-prepared B&G Schedule I and
Summary Schedule I reporis.

(6) Any unexpended E&G appropriation carried forward to the fund balance ina
new fiscal year shall be utilized in support of E&G operating activities only.

Authority: Section 7(d) Art. IX, Fla. Const., History — New 12-6-07

10






STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Facilities Committee
June 20, 2011

SUBJECT: A Resolution of the Board of Governors Requesting the Division of Bond
Finance of the State Board of Administration of Florida (the “Division of
Bond Finance”) to issue revenue bonds on behalf of the Florida
International University to finance construction of a Student Residence
Facility on the main campus of Florida International University

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION

Adoption of a resolution approving the issuance of fixed student residence facility
revenue bonds, by the Division of Bond Finance on behalf of the Florida International
University (the “University”), in an amount not to exceed $47,500,00 (the “Bonds”) for
the purpose of financing a Student Residence Facility on the main campus of Florida
International University (“the Project”).

Staffs of the Board of Governors, State University System of Florida, and the Division of
Bond Finance have reviewed this resolution and all supporting documentation. Based
upon this review, it appears that the proposed financing is in compliance with Florida
Statutes governing the issuance of university debt and complies with the debt
management guidelines adopted by the Board of Governors. Accordingly, staff of the
Board of Governors recommends adoption of the resolution and authorization of the
proposed financing.

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF GOVERNORS ACTION

Florida Board of Governors Debt Management Guidelines; Section 1010.62, Florida
Statutes; and Article IX, Section 7(d), Florida Constitution

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The University has submitted a proposal for financing and construction of an expansion
of their student housing. The Project will be located in the central, southern area of the
Modesto A. Maidique campus of the University. The Project will include
approximately 620 beds and 300 parking spaces underneath the facility. The parking
spaces at the facility will only be available to facility residents and will not be
designated as part of the University’s parking system. The project is Phase I of a two-

1



phase project, of which Phase II will provide an additional 620 beds, in approximately
two years. The Project is consistent with the University’s Campus Master Plan. The
total Project cost is expected to be $45 million.

The University’s Board of Trustees has requested approval from the Board of Governors
for the Division of Bond Finance to issue up to $47,500,000 of fixed rate tax-exempt
revenue bonds to finance a portion of the construction of the Project, fund a debt service
reserve fund, capitalized interest and pay costs of issuing the Bonds. The Bonds will
mature thirty (30) years after issuance with level annual debt service payments.

The debt service payments will be funded from revenues generated from the operation
of the University housing system, after payments of operation and maintenance costs.
Operating revenues are generated primarily from housing fees, rental revenues, fines,
special rental fees or other charges for housing services. The Bonds will be issued on
parity with the outstanding Housing System Revenue Bonds, currently outstanding in
the aggregate principal amount of $74,910,000.

Projections provided by the University indicate that sufficient net revenues will be
generated to pay debt service on the Bonds and the outstanding parity bonds.

The University’s Board of Trustees approved the Project and the financing thereof at its
March 15, 2011 meeting.

Supporting Documentation Included: 1. Requesting Resolution
2. Project Summary
3. Attachment I — Estimated Sources and
Uses of Funds
4. Attachment I - Historical and Projected
Pledged Revenues and Debt Service
Coverage

Facilitators/Presenters: Chris Kinsley

12



A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE DIVISION OF
BOND FINANCE OF THE STATE BOARD OF
ADMINISTRATION OF FLORIDA TO ISSUE REVENUE
BONDS ON BEHALF OF FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL
UNIVERSITY TO FINANCE THE CONSTRUCTION OF
STUDENT HOUSING FACILITIES AND RELATED
IMPROVEMENTS ON THE CAMPUS OF FLORIDA
INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY IN AN AMOUNT NOT
TO EXCEED $47,500,000; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

The duly acting and appointed Board of Governors of the State of Florida at a
meeting duly held pursuant to notice and a quorum being present do hereby make the
following resolutions:

BE IT RESOLVED:
1. Findings. The Board of Governors hereby finds as follows:

(A)  Pursuant to Article IX, Section 7 of the Florida Constitution, the
Board of Governors is vested with the power to operate, regulate, control and manage the
State University System of Florida. The Board of Governors is further vested with the
authority to approve the issuance of revenue bonds by a state university pursuant to
Section 1010.62(2), Florida Statutes.

(B)  The Board of Trustees of Florida International University(the
“University”) has requested approval from the Board of Governors for the Division of
Bond Finance to issue revenue bonds in an amount not exceeding $47,500,000 (the
“Bonds”), for the purpose of financing: (i) student housing facilities containing
approximately 620 beds and 300 parking spaces to be located on the main campus of the
University and related improvements; (ii) a debt service reserve; (iii) capitalized interest
and (iv) certain costs relating to the Bonds (collectively, the “Project”). The foregoing plan
to finance the Project is collectively referred to herein as the “Financing Plan”.

(C}  The Project will be part of the housing system at the University.

(D) Upon consideration of the Financing Plan, the Board of Governors
further finds that the issuance of the Bonds is for a purpose that is consistent with the
mission of the University; is structured in a manner appropriate for the prudent financial
management of the University; is secured by revenues adequate to provide for all debt
service payments; has been properly analyzed by the staffs of the Board of Governors and
the Division of Bond Finance; and is consistent with the Board of Governors’ Debt

I

13



Management Guidelines.

(E}  The Board of Governors declares that the Project will serve a public
purpose by providing housing facilities at the University.

(F)  Pursuant to Section 1010.62(2), Florida Statutes, the Board of
Governors determines that the facilities being financed are functionally related to the
revenues being used to secure the Bonds.

(G)  The Project is included in the master plan of the University.

2. Approval of the Project. The Project is approved by the Board of Governors
as being consistent with the strategic plan of the University and the programs offered by
the University.

3. Approval of the Bonds.  The Board of Governors hereby approves and
requests the Division of Bond Finance of the State Board of Administration of Florida (the
“Division”) to issue the Bonds for the purpose of financing the construction of the Project.
Proceeds of the Bonds may be used to pay the costs of issuance of such Bonds, to provide
for capitalized interest, if any, to provide for a municipal bond insurance policy, if any,
and to fund a reserve account or provide debt service reserve insurance, if necessary. The
Bonds are to be secured by the net revenues of the housing system of the University,
which may include but are not limited to, housing fees, rental revenues, fines, special
rental fees or other charges for housing services, and may additionally be secured by
other revenues that are determined to be necessary and legally available. The Division
shall determine the amount of the Bonds to be issued and the date, terms, maturities, and
other features of a fiscal or technical nature necessary for the issuance of the Bonds.
Proceeds of the Bonds and other legally available monies shall be used for the Project,
which is authorized by Section 1010.62, Florida Statutes, or such other housing facility
project at the University which is authorized by Section 1010.62, Florida Statutes. The
issuance of Bonds by the Division for the purpose of reimbursing the University for
capital expenditures paid for the Project from legally available funds of the University is
hereby authorized.

4. Refunding Authority. Authority is further granted for the issuance of
bonds for the purpose of refunding all or a portion of any bonds secured by the revenues
described, if it is deemed by the Division to be in the best financial interest of the State.
The limitation on the amount authorized for the Bonds in Section 1 above shall not apply
to such refunding bonds. Other terms of this resolution shall apply to any such refunding
bonds as appropriate.

5. Compliance. The Board of Governors will comply, and will require the
University to comply, with the following:
2

14



(A) All federal tax law requirements upon advice of bond counsel or
the Division as evidenced by a “Certificate as to Tax, Arbitrage and Other Matters” or
similar certificate to be executed by the Board prior to the issuance of the Bonds.

(B)  All other requirements of the Division with respect to compliance
with federal arbitrage law, pursuant to Section 215.64 (11), Florida Statutes.

(C)  Allrequirements of federal securities law, state law, or the Division,
relating to continuing secondary market disclosure of information regarding the Bonds,
the University, and the University’s housing system, including the collection of the
revenues pledged to the Bonds. Such requirements currently provide for the disclosure of
information relating to the Bonds, the University, and the University’s housing system,
including the collection of the revenues pledged to the Bonds, on an annual basis and
upon the occurrence of certain material events.

(D) All covenants and other legal requirements relating to the Bonds.

6. Fees. Asprovided in Section 215.65, Florida Statutes, the fees charged by
the Division and all expenses incurred by the Division in connection with the issuance of
the Bonds (except for periodic arbitrage compliance fees, if any, which shall be paid from
other legally available funds) shall be paid and reimbursed to the Division from the
proceeds of the sale of such Bonds. If for any reason (other than a reason based on factors
completely within the control of the Division) the Bonds herein requested to be
authorized are not sold and issued, the Board agrees and consents that such fees, charges
and expenses incurred by the Division shall, at the request of the Division, be reimbursed
to the Division by the University from any legally available funds of the University.

7. Authorization. The Division is hereby requested to take all actions
required to issue the Bonds.

8. Reserve and Insurance, If determined by the Division to be in the best
interest of the State, the Board of Governors may cause to be purchased a debt service
reserve credit facility and /or municipal bond insurance, issued by a nationally recognized
bond insurer.

9. Repealing Clause. All resolutions of the Board of Governors or parts
thereof, in conflict with the provisions herein contained, to the extent they conflict
herewith, are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded and repealed.

10.  Authorization of Further Actions Consistent Herewith. The members of
the Board of Governors, attorneys, or other agents or employees of the Board of

3

15



Governors are hereby authorized and directed to do all acts and things required of them
by this resolution or desirable or consistent with the requirements hereof, to assure the
full, punctual and complete performance of all the terms, covenants and agreements
contained in the Bonds and this resolution; including execution of such documents,
certificates, contracts and legal opinions and other material delivered in connection with
the construction or financing of the Project for use by the University, the issuance of the
Bonds or as necessary to preserve the exemption from the taxation of interest on any of
the Bonds which are tax-exempt, in such form and content as the Chair, Vice Chair or
authorized officers executing the same deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

11.  Effective Date. Thisresolution shall become effective immediately upon its
adoption.

Adopted this 23 day of June, 2011

16



CERTIFICATE OF THE CORPORATE SECRETARY

The undersigned, Corporate Secretary of the Board of Governors, does hereby
certify that the attached resolution relating to the issuance of Bonds by the Division of
Bond Finance of the State Board of Administration of Florida is a true and accurate copy
as adopted by the Board of Governors on June 23, 2011, and said resolution has not been
modified or rescinded and is in full force and effect on the date hereof.

BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF THESTATE
UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA

Dated: , 2011 By:

Corporate Secretary

00538599.1

17






Project Description:

Facility Site Location:

Projected Start and
Opening Date:

Demand Analysis:

STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA

BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Project Summary
Florida International University

University Housing Project — Phase I (BT-889)

The proposed housing expansion project will be constructed on the
Florida International University’s main {(Modesto A. Maidique)
campus and will provide an additional 620 beds to the existing
capacity of 3,000 students in the housing system (Biscayne Bay &
Main Campus). The project will be constructed as four bedroom
suites, each bedroom designed for single occupancy, with one
bathroom and a shared common area housing a total of four
students. Serving residents will be community lounges, a
multipurpose room and other spaces which are provided to
accommodate residential life programs and activities. In addition,
four staff apartments will be provided to house full-time
professional staff members and graduate assistants. The project will
include approximately 300 parking spaces underneath the facility
and some ancillary space to service the residents. The parking spaces
at this facility will only be available to the residents of the facility
and will not be designated as part of the University's parking
system. The parking is directly related to student housing and
revenues from resident parking fees for the project shall be
considered as revenues of the housing system. It is anticipated that
Phase II of the project, consisting of an adjacent building that will
also include 620 beds, will be constructed approximately two years
later.

The project is included in the current Campus Master Plan.

The proposed project will be located in the central, southern area of
the Modesto A. Maidique campus of the University.

It is anticipated that construction of the project will commence in
February 2012 and that the project will be open and available for
occupancy in July 2013.

The University has very limited on-campus housing. The student
body now exceeds 42,000 headcount, with only 3,000 students living
on-campus. The University’s goal is to house 20 percent of the total
full-time student body by the year 2016. In order to achieve this goal,

18



Project Cost and
Financing Structure:

the University must construct an additional 3,000 bed spaces. With
the addition of a Law School, Bowl Championship Subdivision
Football, and the Medical School, the University is anticipating
unprecedented growth in demand for on-campus housing services.
The current housing need at the Modesto A. Maidique Campus is
estimated at 1,240 additional bed spaces. Demand on the main
campus for university housing exceeded 100% occupancy in Fall
2010, with in excess of 300 students on the waiting list. The
university stopped accepting housing contracts once the waiting list
exceeded 300.

Although off-campus housing has been an acceptable alternative for
some students, rising costs and limited availability are two
prohibitive factors. Off-campus apartment rental rates have
increased consistently over the past several years and this trend is
expected fo continue for the foreseeable future. The immediate area
surrounding the Modesto A. Maidique Campus is fully developed
and primarily consists of retail shops, restaurants and single family
homes.

The University, with a present total bed capacity of 3,000 students,
does not have sufficient housing capacity to meet its growing
student enrollment. Many students who desired on-campus housing
on the Modesto A. Maidique Campus this year had to be placed in
housing on the Biscayne Bay Campus. The University will
increasingly depend upon the availability of on-campus housing in
order to attract high quality students with greater diversity. The
construction of additional undergraduate and graduate student
housing is critical to the achievement of the University’s goal to
become a top public urban research university.

The total project cost, which includes construction and associated
design costs, is estimated at $45 million ($39 million housing, $6
million parking). The project will be funded through bond proceeds
and an approximately $5 million contribution from the housing
system cash reserves. The project will be financed with fixed rate,
tax-exempt revenue bonds issued by the Florida State Board of
Administration’s Division of Bond Finance, on behalf of Florida
International University, in an amount not to exceed $47,500,000. The
bond issue will be structured with a 30 year final maturity and

19



Security Structure:

Pledged Revenues and
Debt Service Coverage:

approximately level debt service. Approximately $4.3 million of the
debt may be used to fund capitalized interest during the
construction period and $3.4 million will be used to fund a debt
service reserve

(See Attachment 1 for an estimated sources and uses of funds).

Net housing system revenues will be pledged for the payment of
debt service on parity with the system’s outstanding debt. These
revenues are derived primarily from rental income, surmmer special
event rentals, the net revenues from the parking spaces associated
with this project and other miscellaneous collections after deducting
operating and maintenance expenses (“Pledged Revenues”). When
the facility opens in FY2013-14, the projected rental rate for fall and
spring semesters is $4,000 per bed for the four-bedroom suites. These
rates arve consistent with rental rates for existing facilities at the
University and across the State University System.

The debt will be payable solely from the Pledged Revenues and
secured as to the payment of principal and interest, on a parity with
the State of Florida, Florida Education System, Florida International
University Housing Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A the State
of Florida, Board of Regents, Florida International University
Housing Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 1998 and the State of
Florida, Board of Regents, Florida International University Housing
Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 1998 by a lien on the Pledged
Revenues. Currently, $74,910,000 in aggregate principal amount is
outstanding,.

For the entire system, during the past five year period from FY2005-
06 to FY2009-10, Pledged Revenues grew from $$8,036,998 in 2005-06
to $10,511,689 in 2007-08 due to the opening of a new residence hall,
Pledged Revenues remained relatively flat at $10,273,064 for FY
2008-09, and $10,307,716 in 2009-10. This resulted in annual debt
service coverage of 1.24X in 2005-06, 1.32X in 2006-07, 1.47X in 2007-
08, 1.44X in 2008-09 and 1.45X in 2009-10. Mandatory meal plans are
included at certain facilities with the revenues offset by expenses
resulting in no impact on pledged revenues.

Projected revenues are estimated to decline from $10.3 million for
Fiscal Year 2009-10 to just under $10 million for Fiscal Year 2010-11
primarily due to projected growth of expenses outpacing that of

20



Type of Sale:

Analysis and
Recommendation:

revenues. For Fiscal Years 2010-11 to 2014-15, Pledged Revenues for
the system are projected to grow from $9,997,429 to $14,120,742 and
produce debt service coverage of 1.40X in 2010-11, 1.35X in 2011-12,
142X in 2012-13, 1.30X in 2013-14 and 1.34X in 2014-15. For FY2013-
14, the first year of operation of the Project, the system is expected to
generate Pledged Revenues of $13,790,220 and produce an annual
debt service coverage ratio of 1,30X. The coverages for 2011-12 and
2012-13 assume that interest payments on the proposed debt during
the 18-month construction period through August 2013 will be
provided from proceeds of the debt. Without the use of capitalized
interest, the coverages would be 1.01X and 1.11X for Fiscal Years
2011-12 and 2012-13, respectively.

The projected debt service coverages have been calculated using an
interest rate of 6 percent. The projected revenues are based, in part,
upon 3 percent annual rental rate increases through FY2014-15.
Annual operating expenses are expected to increase by
approximately 2 percent per year.

A detailed schedule with the five year history and a five year
projection of the Pledged Revenues, annual debt service coverage
and maximum annual debt service coverage are included in the
Attachment II.

The Division of Bond Finance will make a determination to sell the
Bonds through either a competitive or a negotiated sale based on
market conditions at the time of sale.

Staffs of the Board of Governors and the Division of Bond Finance
have reviewed the information provided by the University with
respect to the request for Board of Governors approval for the
subject financing. The pledged revenues have historically generated
positive debt service coverage and are projected to continue to
provide adequate debt service coverage in the future based on what
appear to be reasonable assumptions as to revenue and expenditure
growth. Further information provided by the University supports
the conclusion that the parking being constructed, with proceeds of
the housing bonds, is functionally related to the housing system. It
appears that the proposed financing is in compliance with the
Florida Statutes governing the issuance of university debt and the
Board of Governors Debt Management Guidelines. Accordingly,

21



staff of the Board of Governor’s recommends adoption of the
resolution authorizing the proposed financing.

22



Sources of Funds

Bond Par Amount

Less: Costs of Issuance

Total Costs of Issuance
Plus: Cash Contribution

Plus: Interest Earnings
{Construction Trust Fund)

Total Sources of Funds

Uses of Funds

Project Cost
(Planning, Design, Construction & Equipment)

Debt Service Reserve Account

Estimated Interest o be paid during
Construction {Capitalized Interest}

Total Uses of Funds

ATTACHMENT I

STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORID A
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY HOUSING
Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds
University Housing Project, Phase 1 (BT-889)

% 47,500,006

$ (484,200}
$ 5,000,000
$ 712,500
$ 52,728,300
$ 45,000,000

§ 3,453,300

$ 4,275,000

$ 52,728,300

Basis for Amounts

Series 2012 Bonds par amount based on a fixed, fax-exempt
interest rate of 6% for 30 years.

Based on estimates (underwriter discount, $282,008: Division of Bond
Finance, $90,000; rating fees, $60 ,000; bond counsel, $20,000; Other,
$32,200)

Based on net bond proceeds deposited in the construction fund,
invested for 15 months at an estimated interest rate of 2%.

Cost of planning, design, construction, and equipment.

Fully funded at maximum annual debt service on the bonds.

This represents 18 months of capitalized interest to be paid from
bond proceeds at an interest rate of 6%.

23



24

“a3es 1semuf Jusdzad 9 v pue IS0 uon ey psapiul pozyjendes uoIur ¢S WO & P J0 Amote red au uo paseq pajeiiafey e BOTAINS AP PoTRBINST
“aeak sad susosed ¢ aseaour 0] patoloxd aie sesuadxe sao1azes ppuuestad soyzo Teak sod Jusdied 7 asesiouy o poyaload aue sygovag aSuty pue seue(es aafoydug .

“asuadxs uonemardap ssat sareder pur sayddns ssourunumew UL EDBUN ‘SILLR[ES YIlm PRIRLOSSR $1800 apnidut saanjrpuadxa juarmy ¢

‘pofoad sty Yt pajersosse saoeds Supped gy sUl LIOIY SHNUD AT 308 SOPIHU OS[e BULOIY [EpudY
‘sndure]y Ley sudessig o 18 ST-#107 A W jusniad ¢ pur sndwery aubIpIRIy 0100074 241 38 Y T-ZLOT A4 Bugae)s read eas A1aas Jusazad ¢ Aq aseatour 0 pagoaford awosy) eiisy z

"PAIPNE U3EG jou sey pur Asioahin) oy AG papiacid sea sasuadie PUP SINUAAST 0] PORIST UOTRULUNL jEOURLF H] L

XPEL X0E1L XZTF'T Xce'l XQF'T XGEL XPEL XLFL XTEL XETL
XBEL X0E'L XZF'L XGEL X0FL XEE'L X$FL XLFL XzZeL X§TL
OLO/L24°01 $ L0 LL8°0T $ 6TE1ETL $ 6LETETL 4 6TETELL $ 6ZEIETL $ BTETET L $ 6ZLIEL L $ 6ZETETL $ 6TEIETL
S9F°045°01 §  BeYDLEDL § SETETIL L X4 R A TA § 6w $  GFTHTEL §  6TEIEEY $  essTINZ $  6YS'BEPY
O008EFE DO0'DSEE
058'062'7 058°G6TT O0Y'CEEY 05e'862F 0598 Y DEY9ET'T OBTL68'F e’ L60Y 009762 009199
5989601 B980T GOC'g60'T 99 ¥60"T GOT660'T FOE060'T FIS860°1 F94'860'T PITE80T PET'960°T
0547¢841 $ DLLeEsT g [HrAN {7 $ Q6T 18T 4§ GEECEL T $ SREVELT § SEGEEL T g grzees’t 4§ CLZFELT 4§ SI80ELT
THLOTTFL $ BTT06L'ET $ LB0F60'0L 3 55L'619'6 $ 6TV L66'6 $ 91’ L0€°01 $ PI0'ELZOL $ 6897 EEST $ 866'L8€°6 $ 866'9£0'8
689956 g 12€'168 $  COE'G6E L~ 274 4 §  §85€E $ LER'SE 3 15062 LI > {14 238 $  BROSIE $  sITYEL
£0TH8S°ET 3 B68861ET § Z06'869'6 $ 0B6"LEF6 $ 1$8°€96'6 $ S8R T6T0L $ £Z0°861°0L $ 98y LEE 0L $ 086240 $ BLLTIRL
STF99¥'L1 5 86678691 ] 086'ZFR'FL § TLOLEFTT $ TLSOEG'EL g 68F968°TL $ £TELIYTL & LL1'SSR'0E $ £0ET0S0L H 605049
CEY'ROT'E 904 LIS F66'LEGT QEFEFT SLU'8TLE SOL668T BLEGFT'T LETOT6'T £0U'65L°E LEYGEYL
SEFTIL LBE'880°8 150°198°s ZI6'TITL 069°'986'9 8196640 FCFELCD €80 SLE9TLY POEELT
16T'956°G §  O06'SIWE $  GEGERET $  COTOVEF $  PFLTILYE § 09LETE $  1608¥6'E §  LE9F6SE % TZgRIey §  8FLToLE
LES0S0'IE § 968c8I0E § TRRTEEFT % LI0'SL8°ET $ CIFORSET  § PLE'GSI'ET § 9p6’c98'ze § E99°CFLEC % ST LLE BT $ BRT'ECEHT
Zeped’ic § 968'ER1NE § WIS % IS8 ET $ CIFDERET $ PLEREICT  § 9¥6'599°77 $ C99TFZIT [ £52°4L8°61 $ 8RE'CLE T
ST-FI0C Xd FI-€10Z A1 EE-ZI0C A ZELI0C T TEOT6eC X3 OT-600C Ad 60-806C A4 §0-2008 17 L9062 X4 90-S00C Ad
papalorg [E3LTOISI

I e ny

1 IDVIIAOD ADIAMAS 1890 A IDAOUL (INY TVIRIOLSIH
TEOT SHEHS 'SANOE ANNAATE ALITDVE DNISNOH

ALISHHAIND TVNOILYNILINI VAOIIOTT

SHONYIAOD 40 GAUVO4d

VOIHONL A0 WALSAS LLISHAAING 2LVLS

2HATIG JAI(] [EUALY WINUIXEY
2OLATRG WA [RNULEY
sopjey] age1asn)

PIAZDS JR(] [RBUUY WX

SITATRG Jqa¢] fenuIny [elo)
SPUOH TIOT
spueg ¥00z
spuog gooe

SPUDi 8661
WBIAIBS A fenuuy

sanuaAzy padpalg
JLIOOU] JSOXIFUY
§TIEBARY] UPISAS Butanog 1o

sasuadxy JUeLIM) 1RO L
sasuadxy Buneiad() Iy
SADEATISG [ENPDRIIU0TY
$301ATIG JPUUOEIB]

e saguadxyy juam))

sanuaAdy weysAg Buisnoy [e10],
(AUI0SY] (B
sanuaady Superdg






STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Facilities Committee
June 20, 2011

SUBJECT: A Resolution of the Board of Governors Requesting the Division of Bond
Finance of the State Board of Administration of Florida (the “Division of
Bond Finance”) to issue revenue bonds on behalf of the Florida
International University to finance construction of a Parking Garage on
the main campus of Florida International University

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION

Adoption of a resolution approving the issuance of fixed rate parking facility revenue
bonds, by the Division of Bond Finance on behalf of the Florida International University
(the “University”), in an amount not to exceed $33,500,000 (the “Bonds”) for the
purpose of financing Parking Garage VI on the main campus of Florida International
University (“the Project”).

Staffs of the Board of Governors, State University System of Florida, and the Division of
Bond Finance have reviewed this resolution and all supporting documentation. Based
upon this review, it appears that the proposed financing is in compliance with Florida
Statutes governing the issuance of university debt and complies with the debt
management guidelines adopted by the Board of Governors, Accordingly, staff of the
Board of Governors recommends adoption of the resolution and authorization of the
proposed financing,.

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF GOVERNOCRS ACTION

Florida Board of Governors Debt Management Guidelines; Section 1010.62, Florida
Statutes; and Article IX, Section 7(d), Florida Constitution

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The University has submitted a proposal for financing and construction of Parking
Garage VL. The Project will be located on the southeast quadrant of the Modesto A.
Maidique campus of FIU. The Project will contain approximately 2,000 parking spaces,
bringing the total number of parking spaces on campus to approximately 17,000. The
Project is consistent with the University’s Campus Master Plan. The total Project cost is
expected to be $37 million.

25



The University’s Board of Trustees has requested approval from the Board of Governors
for the Division of Bond Finance to issue up to $33,500,000 of fixed rate parking facility
revenue bonds to finance a portion of the construction of the Project, fund a debt service
reserve fund, capitalized interest and pay costs of issuing the Bonds. The University
also anticipates contributing $9 million in Parking System cash reserves. The Bonds will
mature thirty (30) years after issuance with level annual debt service payments,

The debt service payments will be funded from revenues generated from the operation
of the University’s Parking System, after payments for operation and maintenance
costs. The primary source of revenues being used to pay debt service on the Bonds will
be transportation access fees required to be paid by all students, faculty and staff
parking decal sales, and fines. The Bonds will be issued on parity with the outstanding
Parking Facility Revenue Bonds, currently outstanding in the aggregate principal
amount of $55,430,000.

Projections provided by the University indicate that sufficient net revenues will be
generated by the transportation access fees, faculty and staff parking decal sales, fines,
and other parking fees to pay debt service on the Bonds and the outstanding parity
bonds. The transportation access fee was increased from an average of $75.00 per
semester for the 2009-10 academic year to an average of $79.00 per semester for
academic year 2010-11. The University plans fee increases in Fiscal Years 2012-13 and
2014-15. The planned Fiscal Year 2012-13 rate increase must be adopted prior to bond
issuance to comply with bond document provisions for additional bond issuance. The
University has represented their intention to take the necessary actions to ensure
technical compliance. The university retains the ability to increase student fees, decal
rates, fines, meter rates and other sources of revenue.

The University’s Board of Trustees approved the Project and the financing thereof at its
March 15, 2011 meeting,.

Supporting Documentation Included: 1. Requesting Resolution
2. Project Summary
3. Attachment | — Estimated Sources and
Uses of Funds
4. Attachment II - Historical and Projected
Pledged Revenues and Debt Service
Coverage

Facilitators/Presenters: Chris Kinsley

26



A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE DIVISION OF
BOND FINANCE OF THE STATE BOARD OF
ADMINISTRATION OF FLORIDA TO ISSUE REVENUE
BONDS ON BEHALF OF FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL
UNIVERSITY TO FINANCE THE CONSTRUCTION OF A
PARKING GARAGE ON THE CAMPUS OF THE
FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $33,500,000; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The duly acting and appointed Board of Governors of the State of Florida at a
meeting duly held pursuant to notice and a quorum being present do hereby make the
following resolutions:

BE IT RESOLVED:
L Findings. The Board of Governors hereby finds as follows:

(A)  Pursuant to Article IX, Section 7 of the Florida Constitution, the
Board of Governors is vested with the power to operate, regulate, control and manage the
State University System of Florida. The Board of Governors is further vested with the
authority to approve the issuance of revenue bonds by a state university pursuant to
section 1010.62(2), Florida Statutes.

(B) The Board of Trustees of Florida International University (the
“University”) has requested approval from the Board of Governors for the Division of
Bond Finance to issue revenue bonds in an amount not exceeding $33,500,000 (the
“Bonds”), for the purpose of financing: (i) a parking garage of approximately 2,000 spaces
to be located on the main campus of the University; (ii) a debt service reserve; and (iii)
capitalized interest; and (iv) certain costs relating to the Bonds (collectively, the “Project”).
The foregoing plan to finance the Project is collectively referred to herein as the
“Financing Plan”.

(C)  The project will be part of the parking system at the University.

(D) Upon consideration of the Financing Plan, the Board of Governors
further finds that the issuance of the Bonds is for a purpose that is consistent with the
mission of the University; is structured in a manner appropriate for the prudent financial
management of the University; is secured by revenues adequate to provide for all debt
service payments; has been properly analyzed by the staffs of the Board of Governors and
the Division of Bond Finance; and is consistent with the Board of Governors’ Debt
Management Guidelines.

1

27



(E)  The Board of Governors declares that the Project will serve a public
purpose by providing parking facilities at the University.

(F) The Project is included in the master plan of the University.

2. Approval of the Project. The Project is approved by the Board of Governors
as being consistent with the strategic plan of the University and the programs offered by
the University.

3. Approval of the Bonds.  The Board of Governors hereby approves and
requests the Division of Bond Finance of the State Board of Administration of Florida (the
“Division”) to issue the Bonds for the purpose of financing the construction of the Project,
in an amount not to exceed $33,500,000. Proceeds of the Bonds may be used to pay the
costs of issuance of such Bonds, to provide for capitalized interest, if any, to provide fora
municipal bond insurance policy, if any, and to fund a reserve account or provide debt
service reserve insurance, if necessary. The Bonds are to be secured by the net revenues
of the parking system of the University, which may include but are not limited to,
transportation access fees, parking decal fees, fines, special rental fees or other charges for
parking services or parking spaces, and may additionally be secured by other revenues
that are determined to be necessary and legally available. The Division shall determine
the amount of the Bonds to be issued and the date, terms, maturities, and other features of
a fiscal or technical nature necessary for the issuance of the Bonds. Proceeds of the Bonds
and other legally available monies shall be used for the Project, which is authorized by
Section 1010.62, Florida Statutes, or such other parking facility project at the University
which is authorized by Section 1010.62, Florida Statutes. The issuance of Bonds by the
Division for the purpose of reimbursing the University for capital expenditures paid for
the Project from legally available funds of the University is hereby authorized.

4. Refunding Authority. Authority is further granted for the issuance of
bonds for the purpose of refunding all or a portion of any bonds secured by the revenues
described, if it is deemed by the Division to be in the best financial interest of the State.
The limitation on the amount authorized for the Bonds in Section 1 above shall not apply
to such refunding bonds. Other terms of this resolution shall apply to any such refunding
bonds as appropriate.

5. Compliance. The Board of Governors will comply, and will require the
University to comply, with the following;:

(A) All tederal tax law requirements upon advice of bond counsel or

the Division as evidenced by a “Certificate as to Tax, Arbitrage and Other Matters” or
similar certificate to be executed by the Board prior to the issuance of the Bonds.

2

28



(B)  All other requirements of the Division with respect to compliance
with federal arbitrage law, pursuant to Section 215.64 (11), Florida Statutes.

(C)  Allrequirements of federal securities law, state law, or the Division,
relating to continuing secondary market disclosure of information regarding the Bonds,
the University, and the University’s parking system, including the collection of the
revenues pledged to the Bonds. Such requirements currently provide for the disclosure of
information relating to the Bonds, the University, and the University’s parking system,
including the collection of the revenues pledged to the Bonds, on an annual basis and
upon the occurrence of certain material events.

(D)  All covenants and other legal requirements relating to the Bonds.

6. Fees. Asprovided in Section 215.65, Florida Statutes, the fees charged by
the Division and all expenses incurred by the Division in connection with the issuance of
the Bonds (except for periodic arbitrage compliance fees, if any, which shall be paid from
other legally available funds) shall be paid and reimbursed to the Division from the
proceeds of the sale of such Bonds. If for any reason (other than a reason based on factors
completely within the control of the Division) the Bonds herein requested to be
authorized are not sold and issued, the Board agrees and consents that such fees, charges
and expenses incurred by the Division shall, at the request of the Division, be reimbursed
to the Division by the University from any legally available funds of the University .

7. Authorization. The Division is hereby requested to take all actions
required to issue the Bonds.

8. Reserve and Insurance. If determined by the Division to be in the best
interest of the State, the Board of Governors may cause to be purchased a debt service
reserve credit facility and /or municipal bond insurance, issued by a nationally recognized
bond insurer.

9. Repealing Clause. All resolutions of the Board of Governors or parts
thereof, in conflict with the provisions herein contained, to the extent they conflict
herewith, are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded and repealed.

10.  Authorization of Further Actions Consistent Herewith. The members of
the Board of Governors, attorneys, or other agents or employees of the Board of
Governors are hereby authorized and directed to do all acts and things required of them
by this resolution or desirable or consistent with the requirements hereof, to assure the
full, punctual and complete performance of all the terms, covenants and agreements
contained in the Bonds and this resolution; including execution of such documents,
certificates, contracts and legal opinions and other material delivered in connection with

3

29



the construction or financing of the Project for use by the University, the issuance of the
Bonds or as necessary to preserve the exemption from the taxation of interest on any of
the Bonds which are tax~exempt, in such form and content as the Chair, Vice Chair or
authorized officers executing the same deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

11.  Effective Date. Thisresolution shall become effective immediately upon its
adoption.

Adopted this 23 day of June, 2011

30



CERTIFICATE OF THE CORPORATE SECRETARY

The undersigned, Corporate Secretary of the Board of Governors, does hereby
certify that the attached resolution relating to the issuance of Bonds by the Division of
Bond Finance of the State Board of Administration of Florida is a true and accurate copy
as adopted by the Board of Governors on June 23, 2011, and said resolution has not been
modified or rescinded and is in full force and effect on the date hereof.

BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF THE STATE
UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA

Dated: , 2011 By:

Corporate Secretary

(0538599.1

31






STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Project Summary
Florida International University
Parking Garage VI

Project Description: The proposed project is a multi-level parking structure on Florida
International University’s main campus and will provide
approximately 2,000 structured parking spaces to accommodate
students, faculty, and staff.

The project is included in the current Campus Master Plan,

Facility Site Location: The proposed Parking Garage Six project will be located on the
southeast quadrant of the Modesto A. Maidique campus of FIU.

Projected Start and

Opening Date: It is anticipated that construction of the project will commence in
February 2012 and that the project will be open and available for
occupancy in July 2013.

Demand Analysis: The University community is presently comprised of over 42,000
students, over 6,000 full and part-time faculty and staff and a large
number of daily visitors. Drivers of the 37,203 currently permitted
student vehicles and 6,750 permitted employee vehicles compete for
the 14,965 available parking spaces.

Of the 14,965 spaces, 9,462 are available for students and 2,877 are
available for faculty and staff. The remaining spaces consist of
service vehicles spaces, visitor lot spaces, metered spaces and
loading zones. Unmet parking demands are expected to increase
over time due to projected annual enrollment growth of
approximately five percent. In addition, the construction of a 620-
bed housing facility will displace some surface spaces throughout
construction over the next two years. The proposed project will
increase the total spaces on campus to approximately 17,000 and
approximately 6,900 structured parking spaces.

Project Cost and

Financing Structure: The total project cost, which includes construction and associated
design costs, is estimated at $37 million and will be funded through
bond proceeds and an approximately $9 million contribution from
the parking system cash reserves. The project will be financed with

32



Security/Lien Structure:

Pledged Revenues and
Debt Service Coverage:

fixed rate, tax-exempt revenue bonds issued by the Florida State
Board of Administration’s Division of Bond Finance, on behalf of
Florida International University, in an amount not to exceed
$33,500,000. The bond issue will be structured with a 30 year final
maturity and approximately level debt service. Approximately $3.0
million of the debt may be used to fund capitalized interest during
the 18-month construction period, if necessary, and $2.4 million will
be used to fund a Debt Service Reserve.

Net parking system revenues will be pledged for the payment of
debt service. These revenues are derived primarily from a student
transportation access fee, faculty and staff parking decal sales, fines,
and other miscellaneous revenues, after deducting operating and
maintenance expenses (“Pledged Revenues”). The transportation
access fee was increased from an average of $75.00 per semester for
the 2009-10 academic year to an average of $79.00 per semester for
academic year 2010-11. The university retains the ability to increase
student fees, decal rates, fines, meter rates and other sources of
revenue.

The debt will be payable solely from and secured as to the payment
of principal and interest, on a parity with the State of Florida, Florida
Board of Education, Florida International University Parking Facility
Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, 2009A and 2009B and the State of
Florida, Board of Regents, Florida International University Parking
Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 1995 and 1999 by a lien on the
Pledged Revenues. Currently, $55,430,000 in aggregate principal
amount is outstanding.

During the five year period from fiscal year 2005-06 to 2009-10,
pledged revenues grew from $4,706,368 to $6,631,126. These
revenues produced debt service coverage ratios ranging from a high
of 2.01X for Fiscal Years 2007-08 and 2008-09 to a low of 1.51X for
Fiscal Year 2009-10; the lower debt service coverage resulted from
the issuance of new debt. These calculations of pledged revenues
and debt service coverage exclude the revenue and expenses of the
bus system and vehicle services, as they are not part of the pledged
revenues. Excess pledged revenues remaining after payment of debt
service were sufficient in each year to pay expenses of the bus
system and vehicle services.

33



Type of Sale:

Analysis and
Recommendation:

Pledged revenues are projected to be $6,803,517 in fiscal year 2010-
11, growing to $10,100,833 in fiscal year 2014-2015 and produce debt
service coverage of 1.22X in 2010-11, 1.50X in 2011-12, 1.69X in 2012-
13, 1.15X in 2013-14 and 1.26X in 2014-15. Debt service for the new
bond issue for Fiscal Years 2011-12 and 2012-13 is assumed to be
funded by capitalized interest. In the event capitalized interest is not
used debt service would increase by $1 million for Fiscal Year 2011-
12 and $2 million for Fiscal 2012-13 with debt coverage declining to
1.27X and 1.24X, respectively. For Fiscal Year 2013-14, the first year
of operation of the Project, the system is expected to generate
Pledged Revenues of $9,221,277 and produce an annual debt service
coverage ratio of 1.15X. These coverage calculations exclude the
BABs annual subsidy of approximately $642,000, which would
increase the 1.15X coverage in 2013-14 to 1.25X, if included; and from
1.26X ito 1.37X in 2014-15. Excess pledged revenues remaining after
payment of debt service are expected to be sufficient in each year to
pay expenses of operating the bus system and vehicle services.

The projected debt service coverage ratio has been calculated using
an interest rate of 6 percent on the bonds and an average of $79.00
per semester transportation access fee for 2010-11 with an annual
increase of 5 percent in both fiscal years 2012-13 and 2014-2015. The
University must enact the planned Fiscal Year 2012-13 rate increase
prior to bond issuance to comply with bond document provisions for
additional bond issuance. The University has represented their
intention to take the necessary actions fo ensure technical
compliance. Operating costs, excluding bus system expenses, are
projected to increase approximately 2 percent per year.

(See Attachment II for a detailed summary of historical and projected
debt service coverage)

The Division of Bond Finance will make a determination to sell the
Bonds through either a competitive or negotiated sale based on
market conditions at the time of sale.

Staff of the Board of Governors and the Division of Bond Finance has
reviewed the information provided by the Florida International
University with respect to the request for Board of Governors
approval for the subject financing. Projections provided by the
University indicate that sufficient net revenues will be generated

34



from mandatory student fees, decal sales, fines and meters to pay
debt service on the Bonds and the outstanding Parking Bonds. It
appears that the proposed financing is in compliance with the
Florida Statutes governing the issuance of university debt and is in
compliance with the Board of Governors’ Debt Management
Guidelines. Accordingly, staff of the Board of Governors
recommends adoption of the resolution authorizing the proposed
financing,.

35



ATTACHMENT I

STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BOARD OF GOVERNORS

FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY PARKING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2012

Sources of Funds

Bond Par Amount

Less: Costs of Issuance

Total Costs of Issuance
Plus: Cash Contribution

Plus: Interest Garnings
(Construction Trust Fund)

Total Sources of Funds

Uses of Funds

Project Cost
(Planning, Design, Construction & Equipment)

Debt Service Reserve Account

Estimated Interest to be paid during
Construction (Capitalized Interest}

Totai Uses of Funds

3

Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds

Parking Garage 6

$ 33,500,000
% (551,200}
$ 9,000,000
$ 502,500
$ 42,451,300
$ 37,000,000
$ 2,436,300
3 3015000

S 42,451,300

Basis for Amounts

Series 2012 Bonds par amount based on a fixed, tax-exempt
interest rate of 6% for 30 years.

Based on estimates (underwriters discount, 251,250; Division of Bond
Finance, $76,500; rating fees, $55,000; bond cousel $20,000; other $148,450}

Based on net bond proceeds deposited in the construction fund,
invested for 15 months at an estimated interest rate of 2%.

Cost of planning, design, consiruction, and equipment.

Fully funded at maximum annual debt service on the bonds.

This represents 18 months of capitalized interest to be paid from
bond proceeds at an inferest rate of 6%.

36



a1 ysareiur Jusndad ¢ B puUR UOHRN 7§ J0 IS "UCH{IW (§'ES JO tsatequr paziendes wor i ¢gpg jo jumowe sed ayz U0 pesed paje(ri(ed sem 33ARE 1gop pojewsy

BLIOIU PRI 2191 ATUO []1m 2W0ot taaaut eyl sTAON0d mau ET ojofiod RIGUDSSAUT 3 JO LoBen A IR U soSuptp S10[Ja1 SIOOU ISBIYU] 'L 10 107 O UG

ead od juasiad g eseanul 0y papslosd sxe pur 51503 £1ygR D109 sapnpUL .

“read gad susaaad g Ljerewoxdde sseaunuy o3 papailosd are pue sestadxe JUSTIMD wayo pue seiddng pue s{RIIBIBUI EOURUSIUTEWT SOPApU] B

read 1ad juaoied 7 Apjewxordde sseorni o) paelosd ose sesuadxa sartazes puuosed o Lesd Bd Jumiad 7 dprewixordde sseamuy o3 popalord axv siysusy adupsy pue seejes safopdwuy _
“sanuaady paBpald oyt Jo ed e jou - SIURES)LES TRDURIT 341 Ut PAPIDUT 318 PIUM 89515 APIPA pue ssoldxy Toyie Uep[on sepnpxy w

ST-FI0TAL PUB [[-0102A Woy read yped Juodad | aseanut o) papsfold ate ssoeds Suppied posasous Woly anuoasy] Supfiey 101SIA c

‘ST-HI0TAL Pue CT-TI0TAL Wiveozad ¢ aseaioul 03 papsalord 2ie seag pue speag] Sunjieg .

"Pa3pnE U9ad 10U $BY puT ANSIAIMT ayy £q papiaoid sem sesuadXo pur SINUDAT 0} PAJR[AI UORRWION] [ePeL 3y T .

X971 XCET X8T'T X6PL XZT'L XgT'L XLTT ¥ *PEL X60'L SIAIAT Ja] [EMRTY WINUXE
L7A X6l X1e'T X691 X8EL *xGE1 Xge'L e *96°L X091 01atag jqad penury
soney aSerano)

CEPEIDS CETETOR CEFEL0S FIZ'1I85°S FITIS8E'S FIL'I8G"S £TH'P6E'Y £THFELY a1 ord < Jitod 7 BDALSG JGR(] [ENUUY WNUIEXETA
LEZTLE LS CTITLE LS P06'8E6° S 694°€6'FS FISTEE'PS ¥9E9T6'FE 6IRGHOTS £HF0I8'ES BLETTH'ES SEF066'2% 014395 1423 jenuny [R10]
008FEFT 000'eeF'T - - - - - - - - JSpueg Z10Z
TWT606'T 1987161 ¥LETH'T PTETIBT FTOTI6T FTL606'T GHO'TE0L - - - SPUOg 6007
BITLELT 61T 28LT 6182841 G90°TRL T eV IP4'T e 0rLT PO0IRLT 99'88L°T TFO0FLT IT96E4°T spuog 700z
FEEOEG FL1°959 FLT'6ES FS8'GED 666669 65LFE9 B0E'LE9 H94'659 64T6E9 694989 spuog 661
BE0°969 698°6F9 880°%HY ETETYY B66'CF9 CLTEY §6E'REY S0£'€E9 860°789 880°TI9 SPUCY G661
12DIAIIG JGR(] [enUEY
EERDOL01S LLTITT'68 8I9 1P 6% 698°LPE'8S L18°608'0% P LET L TETRLSC 6TSTRT'04 £15'006°s4 LEEL6LE sanuassy padpald
POLLECS Tic'sees 9£45'6ET8 bL8'88% |9P'57$ FEQ'8TSS {91S'L0FS) LPE6HES 669°05¥%% 81T'/T8 SWosu] jsaraju]
6Z1'59%'6% 996'C88°8E 765'081°6% G66'EST'R% 6H0°82L°9% 08581994 FHLCRE'SS TR1'968'54 FIR'erEas 6T0'0LLPE sanuandy waysdg Jupreg 9N
QL' L6 PR STHOCRES 1T ERTTE LEFE'G0TE €61'6ETFH S8T'6LLCH SPI'GLE'ES 0£9'c£8°2S 9TLTIELS 0ZL'EL0°C$ sasuadxg jaanyy [ejoL
868708 TP TLey FAL R TAES TELBILE FLECFEE 656 T64°C 9FL'RI1E 1948481 BOE 29871 G8T'RIST h.%mm.mo%nm Buperd) PO
09206773 05E'S3T'TS 06T TTITS 048'080°T6 065'900°C$ 129°568°CS 7L8°610°TS £GT'RTE TS CLEBOCTS LFOOPTIS SROLAIRG [FUUOSID ] PUv Sariejeg

sasuadxy yuann)

8S9'RERVIS  T6EYILE1S CLVOLEETS  TREOCETIS  CPSUISGIS 890'866'6% £64° 09565 CLY'BZF'RS OFS'T9L LS BPL'ERR9% sanuaary wsAg Fupieg eoL
0CY'850's SPEFEE'E SETITHT 048'768°C LE4198S'T €7L'981°T 60T HPET 8CI'E8IT FOLOO0'L PLLSLS PTHRANYT 13YIO 3 Butmo ] SaULY dygfeiy,
006'0TF 0T LT 000'FTE 00901 00T L0V 108967 $E116E $96°EFE CLT6SE 180°6¥E SFUD[IR JORSIA
GPTIOLTIS SSTIRYLIE 96FGSETIS (8YL9T0T$ £Tooires 09€'8L9'8$ 68062828 9LE'RALLS 6T1°E€9°9% O1Z'160'9% /58] pue s[ea(] Bupiieg

sanuaasy Buyesado

SI-piee Ad VI-E10T Ad €1-216¢ A TI-EL0T Ad LEOL0Z A DE-600Z A4 60-800C X1 B0-L60T Xd 409002 Ad 90-£002 Ad

payrafoig TEdLIONSTIEL

L ADVAZAOD 3DIANES 1495 Aa.LD3[0OUd ANV TVOIIOLSH IVIA-¢
TI0Z SHINAS ‘SANOE ANNAATYE ALV HNDIVL
ALISHAAIND TYNOLLVNYALNI VAo
SHONHIAOD 40 qavOd
VAIHOTI 40 WILSAS ALISHEAINA ZLVIS

ITININHIVLLY

37



STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Facilities Committee
June 20, 2011

SUBJECT: A Resolution of the Board of Governors Authorizing the Issuance by the
University of Florida University Athletic Association of Bonds to Finance
the Construction, Renovation and Equipping of various Capital
Improvements to certain Athletic Facilities on the main campus of the
University of Florida

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION

Adoption of a resolution approving the issuance of fixed or variable rate tax-exempt
bonds, by the University of Florida University Athletic Association (the “Association”),
in an amount not to exceed $15,000,000 (the “Bonds”) for the purpose of financing the
construction, renovation and equipping of certain athletic facilities, including the west
concourse of Ben Hill Griffin Stadium, the O’Connell Center 1st Fioor, the O’Connell
Center Gymnastics Studio, covering the tennis courts, renovating the softball batting
cages and locker rooms and equipping a new scoreboard control and production room
for football /basketball /baseball /softball, all of which will be or are located on the
University of Florida’s (the “University”) main campus (“the Project”).

Staffs of the Board of Governors, State University System of Florida and the Division of
Bond Finance have reviewed this resolution and all supporting documentation. Based
upon this review, it appears that the proposed financing is in compliance with Florida
Statutes governing the issuance of university debt and complies with the debt
management guidelines adopted by the Board of Governors. Accordingly, staff of the
Board of Governors recommends adoption of the resolution and authorization of the
proposed financing.

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF GOVERNORS ACTION

Florida Board of Governors Debt Management Guidelines; Section 1010.62, Florida
Statutes; and Article IX, Section 7(d), Florida Constitution

38



BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The University of Florida has submitted a proposal for financing the construction,
renovation and equipping of certain athletic facilities on the main campus of the
University of Florida. The Project will include the renovation of the West Concourse of
Ben Hill Griffin Stadium, the renovation of the O’Connell Center 15t Floor, ( the
renovation of the O’Connell Center Gymnastics Studio, covering the tennis courts, the
renovation of the softball batting cages and locker rooms, and equipping a new
scoreboard control and production room for football /basketball /baseball /softball. All
portions of the Project will be located on the University’s main campus. The total
Project cost is expected to be $14,850,000.

The Project is consistent with the University’s Campus Master Plan.

The Association, a direct support organization of the University of Florida, proposes to
issue up to $15,000,000 of fixed or variable rate, tax-exempt bonds to finance the Project.
The Bonds will mature twenty (20) years after issuance and are anticipated to be
amortized on a level principal basis. There will not be a debt service reserve fund.

The Bonds are a general unsecured obligation of the Association payable from available
revenues of the Association, including but not limited to, ticket sales, conference
revenues, auxiliary sales, sponsorships and such other revenues that may be used,
pursuant to Section 1010.62, Florida Statutes to pay and secure debt other than student
athletic fees described in Section 1009.24(12), Florida Statutes. The Association revenues
are derived from a variety of sources. Operating revenues include ticket sales and
conference revenues, auxiliary sales, sponsorships, student athletic fees and other
miscellaneous sources. Non-operating revenues are derived primarily from investment
earnings and gifts. Student athletic fees are not available to pay debt service, but are
available to pay other expenses of the Association. Projections provided by the
University indicate growth in operating revenues and growth in non-operating
revenues sufficient to pay debt service on the Bonds.

The Bonds will be issued on parity with previously issued bonds of the Association
currently outstanding in an aggregate principal amount of approximately $80 million,
60% of which have variable rates of interest. The Association has approximately twenty
years of experience managing its variable rate debt portfolio and has historically
generated positive debt service coverage, which is projected to continue based on
reasonable assumptions as to revenue and expenditure growth. It appears that the
proposed financing is in compliance with Florida Statutes governing the issuance of
university debt and the Board of Governors Debt Management Guidelines.

39



The University Athletic Association Board of Directors, at a meeting June 15, 2011, and
the University of Florida Board of Trustees, at its June 10, 2011 meeting, approved the
Project and the financing thereof.

Supporting Documentation Included: 1. Requesting Resolution
2. Project Summary
3. Attachment 1 — Estimated Sources and Uses
4. Attachment 2 — Historical and Projected
Pledged Revenues and Debt Service
Coverage

Facilitators/Presenters: Chris K_insley






A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ISSUANCE BY THE
UNIVERSITY ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION, INC. (THE
“ASSOCIATION"), A UNIVERSITY DIRECT SUPPORT
ORGANIZATION, OF ITS ATHLETIC PROGRAM
REVENUE BONDS, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$15,000,000 AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The duly acting and appointed Board of Governors of the State of Florida at a
meeting duly held pursuant to notice and a quorum being present, do hereby make the
following resolutions:

BEIT RESOLVED:
1. Findings. The Board of Governors hereby finds as follows:

(A)  Pursuant to Section 7, Article IX of the Florida Constitution, the
Board of Governors is vested with the power to operate, regulate, control and manage
the State University System of Florida. The Board of Governors is further vested with
the authority to approve the issuance of debt by a state university or its direct support
organization pursuant to Section 1010.62(3}), Florida Statutes.

(B)  The Association was incorporated by The University of Florida
Board of Trustees (the “University Board”) to provide direct support to the University
of Florida (the “University”) and designated as a “University Direct Support
Organization” by the University Board pursuant to Section 1004.28, Florida Statutes.

(C) The University Board has requested approval from the Board of
Governors for the Association (the “DSO”) to issue Athletic Program Revenue Bonds,
Series 2011, in an amount not to exceed $15,000,000 (the “Bonds”) for the purpose of
financing or reimbursing the construction, renovation and equipping of certain capital
improvements to certain athletic facilities, including particularly, one or more of the
projects described on the Project Summary, all on the campus of the University
(collectively, the "Project”) and (ii) paying certain costs relating to the Bonds, The
foregoing plan to finance the Project and costs relating to the Bonds is collectively
referred to herein as the “Financing Plan.”

(D) Upon consideration of the Financing Plan, the Board of Governors
further finds that the issuance of the debt is for a purpose that is consistent with the
mission of the University; is structured in a manner appropriate for the prudent
financial management of the University; is payable from revenues adequate to provide
for all debt service; has been properly analyzed by the staffs of the Board of Governors
and the Division of Bond Finance; and is consistent with the Board of Governor’s Debt

41



Management Guidelines.

(E}  The Board of Governors declares that the Project will serve a public
purpose by accommodating growth in the University’s athletic program.

2, Approval of the Project. The Project is approved by the Board of
Governors as being consistent with the mission and strategic plan of the University and
the programs offered by the University.

3. Approval of the Bonds. The Board of Governors hereby approves
issuance of the Bonds by the Association for the purposes described herein, in an
amount not to exceed $15,000,000, said Bonds to have a final maturity not fo exceed
twenty (20) years from the date thereof and a fixed or variable interest rate mode
acceptable to the Association. This approval is subject to the understanding that (i) the
Bonds shall be a general unsecured obligation of the Association payable from available
revenues of the Association, including but not limited to, ticket sales, conference
revenues, auxiliary sales, sponsorships and such other revenues that may be used,
pursuant to section 1010.62, Florida Statutes to pay and secure debt (with the exception
of the Athletic Fees, as described in Section 1009.24(12), Florida Statutes) collected by
the Association and (ii) the proceeds of the Bonds shall be used exclusively to fund the
Financing Plan. The Bonds may be sold by negotiated sale consistent with the proposed
Financing Plan or by competitive sale.

4. Compliance. The University Board will comply, and will require the
University and the Association to comply, with the following:

(A) Al federal tax law requirements upon advice of bond counsel as
evidenced by a “Certificate as to Tax, Arbitrage and Other Matters” or similar certificate
to be executed by the University Board prior to the issuance of the Bonds.

(B)  All covenants and other legal requirements relating to the Bonds.

5. Repealing Clause. All resolutions of the Board of Governors or parts
thereof, in conflict with the provisions herein contained, to the extent they conflict
herewith, are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded and repealed.

6. Authorization of Further Actions Consistent Herewith. The members of
the Board of Governors, attorneys, or other agents or employees of the Board of
Governors are hereby authorized and directed to do all acts and things required of them
by this resolution or desirable or consistent with the requirements hereof, to assure the
full, punctual and complete performance of all the terms, covenants and agreements
contained in the Bonds and this resolution; including execution of such documents,
certificates, contracts and legal opinions and other material delivered in connection

42



with acquisition, sale or leasing of the Project for use by the University, the issuance of
the Bonds or as necessary to preserve any tax-exemption thereon, in such form and
content as the Chair, Vice Chair or authorized officers executing the same deem
necessary, desirable or appropriate.

7. Effective Date. This resolution shall become effective July 1, 2011 and is
conditioned upon the release of any priority rights on the Stadium Net Revenues (as
defined in the Credit and Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2011, between the
DSO and SunTrust Bank).

43



CERTIFICATE OF THE CORPORATE SECRETARY

The undersigned, Corporate Secretary of the State University System of Florida
Board of Governors, does hereby certify that the attached resolution relating to the
issuance of Bonds by The University Athletic Association, Inc. is a true and accurate
copy as adopted by the Board of Governors on June 23, 2011, and said resolution has
not been modified or rescinded and is in full force and effect on the date hereof.

STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF
FLORIDA BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Dated; L2011 By:

Corporate Secretary

44



Project:

Facility Site Location:

Projected Start and
Opening Date:

Project Description/
Need:

STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA

BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Project Summary
University of Florida

University Athletic Association Improvements

The University  Athletic Association (the “Association”)
Improvements (the “Project”) include the construction, renovation
and equipping of various capital improvements to certain athletic
facilities. The Project may include the renovation of the West
Concourse of Ben Hill Griffin Stadium, (the “Stadium Renovations”)
the renovation of the O’Connell Center 1%t Floor (the “O’Connell 1st
Floor Renovations”), the renovation of the O'Connell Center
Gymnastics Studio (the “Gymmastics Renovations”), covering the
tennis courts (the “Tennis Court Renovations”), the renovation of the
softball batting cages and locker rooms (the “Softball Renovations”)
and the equipping of a new scoreboard control and production room
for football /basketball /baseball /softball (the “Control Room”).

All of the improvements are to facilities located on the main campus
of the University of Florida (the “University”) and are consistent
with the University’s Master Plan.

It is anticipated that construction for the Stadium Renovations will
commence in either December 2011 or December 2012 and be
completed in either calendar year 2012 or 2013. All other
improvements are scheduled to begin construction in May 2012 and
be available in calendar year 2013.

The proposed Stadium Renovations are to the main and upper levels
of the West Concourse plus the adjacent restrooms and concessions.
The Stadium Renovations focus on updating the finishes, reducing
overhead mechanical and electrical utilities, improving crowd flow
and improving the functionality of concessions for the users and the
vendors. The improvements also include installation of ADA
compliant restroom plumbing fixtures, upgrading the fire alarm
system and renovating the first aid rooms.

The proposed O'Connell 1t Floor Renovations consist of
approximately 18,000 GSF of renovation and approximately 14,900
GSF of refinished space in the lower level of the O’Connell Center.
The renovation and improvement of the facilities include replacing
and updating the currently damaged finishes, providing more

i

45



Project Cost and
Financing Structure:

efficient use of space for storage, laundry and vending and creating
new public restrooms.

The proposed Gymmnastics Renovations intend to address space and
heating issues on the north side of the O’Connell Center. The current
gymnastics studio provides inadequate square footage, resulting in
over-utilization of the space, which can be dangerous for athletes.
The Gymnastics Renovations will add more space for training and
also include space for the coaching staff that is near the training area.
Coaches are currently remotely located on the other side of the
building. In addition, the Gymnastics Renovations will include a
reconstruction of the roof to address temperature control issues.

The Tennis Court Renovations include the demolition and redesign
of the existing tennis practice facility to create a fully enclosed
facility. The footprint will remain the same.

The Softball Renovations are to upgrade the Women's Softball
Complex and include replacing the existing practice batting facility,
adding additional seating and remodeling an existing storage area to
create umpire locker rooms.

The Project also includes the Control Room, which includes the
equipping of a new scoreboard control and production room for
football /basketball / gymmnastics /volleyball /baseball / softball.
Currently, the video board productions emanate from a production
truck that has suffered significant failure in recent months and is no
longer a viable option. The Control Room will provide a long term
solution to renting a production truck as well as maximize
efficiencies for the Association’s electronic media department.
Although this item has an estimated useful life of 10 years, which is
less than the term of the debt, it is being included in the larger
financing for efficiency.

The Project will include any or all of the above depending on
ultimate costs of individual items.

The proposed Project construction cost is estimated to be $14,850,000.
This includes planning, construction and equipment costs of $5.4
million for the Stadium Renovations, $4 million for the Gymmnastics
Renovations, $1.35 million for the O’Connell 1t Floor Renovations,
$1.3 million for the Tennis Courts, $700,000 for the Softball
Renovations and $2.1 million for the Control Room.

46



Security/Lien Structure:

Pledged Revenues and
Debt Service Coverage:

The Project will be financed with tax-exempt revenue bonds issued
by the Association, in an amount not to exceed $15,000,000 (the
“Bonds”). The financing is planned to be structured with a 20-year
final maturity, with the first principal payment occurring in October
2012 and final maturity in October 2031. While the Association does
not expect to set mandatory amortizations, it is planning to make
level annual principal payments to retire the debt. This will retire the
debt faster than a level debt service structure. Funding for a debt
service reserve fund will not be provided.

The Bonds can be issued as either fixed or variable interest rate debt;
however, it is expected that the debt will be issued as variable rate
(see “Variable Rate Debt” below).

The Bonds will be general unsecured obligations of the Association
payable from available revenues of the Association, including but
not limited to, ticket sales, conference revenues, auxiliary sales,
sponsorships and such other revenues that may be used, pursuant to
Section 1010.62, Florida Statutes to pay and secure debt, other than
student athletic fees described in Section 1009.24(12), Florida
Statutes. The Bonds will be issued on parity with previously issued
bonds of the Association currently outstanding in an aggregate
principal amount of $80 million.

Association revenues are collected from a variety of sources.
Operating revenues include ticket sales (with retained sales tax) and
conference revenues (primarily football and basketball), auxiliary
sales, sponsorship, student athletic fees and other miscellaneous
sources. Non-operating revenues are derived primarily from
investment earnings and gifts. Although student athletic fees are not
available to pay debt service, they are available to pay other
expenses of the Association. Since the bonds are general unsecured
obligations of the Association, all revenues, including student
athletic fees, and all expenses of the Association must be examined
to assess the Association’s ability to pay debt service.

During the five year period from fiscal year 2005-06 to 2009-10,
operating revenues, including student athletic fees, grew from
$74,647,917 to $104,495,491 for a total increase of nearly 40% or 10%
annually, primarily due to increases in football ticket, royalties and
sponsorships revenues. Over the same period, non-operating
revenues (including capital contributions) grew from $6,929,291 in
2005-06 to $16,541,753 in 2007-08 and then declined to $6,824,428 in
2009-10, primarily due to fluctuations in gifts for capital projects and

3

47



Variable Rate Debt:

investment earnings. From fiscal year 2005-06 2009-10, the
Association’s expenses, net of depreciation and interest expense,
grew from $66,330,012 to $88,302,533 for an increase of 33% or 8.3%
on an average annual basis. Over the same period, revenues
available to pay debt service after payment of annual expenses grew
from $15,247,196 to $23,017,386, producing debt service coverage
ratios of 3.74x in 2005-06 and 2.68x in 2009-10.

For fiscal years 2010-11 to 2014-15, operating revenues are projected
to grow from $100,551,229 to $118,603,503 or approximately 4.5%
average annually. Minimal increases in football ticket prices have
been assumed and no increases in basketball ticket prices. Non-
operating income is projected to remain steady, with $2,345,462
projected in 2010-11 and 2,927,696 projected in 2014-15. Expenses,
net of depreciation and interest expense, are expected to grow by
approximately 8.7% average annually from $80,763,709 to
$109,036,104. Projected Association revenues available to pay debt
service vary from a high of $25,632,982 in 2010-11 to a low of
515,995,095 in 2014-15. This variation in revenues available for debt
service is primarily a result of the Association’s practice of budgeting
for operating revenues below amounts anticipated to be collected.

Resulting projected debt service coverage ratios range from 4.43x in
2010-11 to 2.48x in 2014-15.

The interest rate on the Bonds has been estimated at 6%.

{See Attachment 2 for a table of the Association’s historical and
projected revenues and expenses and debt service coverage, which is
based on information supplied by the Association).

The Association is currently planning to issue the Bonds as variable
rate. However, depending on interest rates at the time of issuance,
the Association may choose to issue fixed rate bonds. After the
issuance of the Bonds, Association’s debt outstanding will total close
to $93 million, with approximately 65% of the debt carrying a
variable rate of interest or a periodic multi-annual remarketing
structure. The Debt Management Guidelines do not set a specific
limit on the amount of variable rate debt which may be outstanding.
However, in making a determination of the proper level of variable
rate debt, the Guidelines do require an understanding of the
associated risks, a plan for addressing and mitigating those risks and
the expected benefit to be derived from issuing variable rate debt,
On balance, the Association has indicated an understanding of these
risks and benefits as discussed below.

48



The Association has approximately twenty years of experience
managing its variable rate debt portfolio since its first variable rate
debt issuance in 1990, The Association believes, based upon an
analysis it has performed, that it can save in excess of $3 million on a
present value basis by issuing the Bonds on a variable rate basis.
The Association has also prepared a debt management plan related
to the issuance of the proposed Bonds as variable rate debt. The
purpose of the plan is to mitigate the liquidity and interest rate risks
over the life of the debt.

If issued as variable rate bonds, the Bonds provide the bondholders
the right to put the securities back to the Association, thereby
creating potential liquidity risk, The Association will obtain either a
direct pay letter of credit or a liquidity facility from a bank to
mitigate the liquidity risk. It is anticipated that the direct pay letter
of credit or liquidity facility will have renewal terms similar to the
direct pay letter of credit the Association currently has for its
outstanding debt. The existing facility is for a five year term with an
evergreen provision which requires that the Association be provided
a notice of non-renewal each year or the facility will automatically
renew for an additional year. The current letter of credit is due to
expire on October 1, 2012 and will either be renegotiated or replaced
at that time. The Association has periodically reviewed the cost and
availability of letters of credit from other banks and has consistently
received indications of interest from several banks at competitive
rates.

With regards to managing interest rate risks, the Association budgets
for variable rate debt each year considering the volatility of short-
term interest rates and their impact on the budget as well as
expectations regarding interest rates. The current practice is to
budget based upon the highest monthly rate for the preceding
twelve months, Quarterly monitoring of debt service expenditures,
projections and variations from budget will be performed by the
Director of Athletics, the Association Finance Committee and the
chair of the Association Audit Committee so that any budgetary
problems can be recognized and addressed very quickly.

The Association has stated that it will also maintain appropriate
amounts of short-term and long-term investments as a hedge against
rising interest rates on its debt. The financing documents require the
Association to maintain unrestricted cash and marketable securities
of at least 25% of its outstanding indebtedness. The short-term
investments average on a monthly basis, approximately $20 million.
The long-term investments totaled approximately $38 million, at

5

49



Type of Sale:

Analysis and
Recommendation;

June 30, 2010. The short-term investments are invested with the
State’s Treasury Investment Pool and earn interest at a variable
monthly rate. These investments should perform as a direct hedge
against approximately one-fifth of the outstanding and proposed
variable rate debt because the interest received on the investments
should increase as the interest rate paid on the variable rate debt
increases.  The long-term investments are currently invested
primarily in equity funds. These investments might not perform in
the same manner as the variable rate debt because their value and
earnings, under varying market conditions, could decline when the
interest rate on the variable rate debt is rising. Although investing in
equity funds does not provide the most stable or predictable hedging
tool, the $38 million in those funds, along with the $20 million in
short-term investments, does provide significant protection to the
Association in the event of an increase in interest rates.

The Association is requesting approval for a negotiated sale of the
Bonds. The Association provided an analysis of the most appropriate
method of entering into this debt (competitive versus negotiated) as
required by the Debt Management Guidelines. A negotiated sale is
the best method for implementing a variable rate financing.

Staff of the Board of Governors and the Division of Bond Finance has
reviewed the information provided by the Association with respect
to the request for Board of Governors approval for the subject
financing.  The information provided demonstrates that the
Association has the ability to manage the significant assets available
to it to assure that the debt can be serviced in a timely manner.
Furthermore, the assets of the Association, including the short-term
investments, put it in a very strong position to manage the interest
rate risk and liquidity risk associated with variable rate debt. It
appears that the proposed financing is in compliance with the
Florida Statutes governing the issuance of university debt and is in
compliance with the Board of Governors Debt Management
Guidelines. Accordingly, staff of the Board of Governors
recommends adoption of the resolution authorizing the proposed
financing.

50



State University System of Florida

Board of Governors
University of Florida

University Athletic Association, Inc.

Athletic Improvments

Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds

Estimated Sources of Funds
Bond Proceeds

Total

Estimated Uses of Funds
Deposit to the 2011 Bond Project Fund to Fund Capital Projects

Estimated Bond Issuance Costs: |
Bond Counsel
Underwriters Discount
Financial Advisor
Rated Agency Fees
LOC Counsel
Trustee Fees
Miscellaneous

Total

$

Attachment 1

15,6040,000.00

15,000,000.00

14,850,000.00

35,000.00
47,000.00
15,000.00

5,000.00
20,006.00

5,000.00
23,000.00

15,000,000.00

1 Costs are based on a full issuance of $15 million and will be iess based on actual

amount of debt issued.

51



2495 JIP pree 2aaasds (0 kdodxa sasuadia fe aoy sseatow e

souuasas Bursuaog pue sonusans doysieods 505 posn sajes 11-5102
sudiysrosuods pue 5uSin uowsosun 10 S2UUDA 581003 J1o8 Ul saseaidul OR]
‘Houtade sod sanuoast PEIEOD 4] IS L1 938830 ISIPUIY

JU{f PHABISER SHMUIADT 20UBL2IUD )

10574 HEHINST W ISE1IUL O

Sjaany [ 10j sauvad omg Aiaaz svestaut saoued 10y0n oo

SHIAUHIESY

firard 87T 0sT L8T e 350460 DIALDS JYI(] WKLY
FLOZ-CINE UL 540300 22TALLY g wnixey - 0]0N
85T 87T [ e EF¥ 84T [3X3 96°L 1€9 ¥4€ aWerean)y Baaseg g2
G S44"AGFG § ODECRITe 00 LI IETL Q66T $ oIELesc $ _BOOSKBess $ Q0L6USERY B GSRTLYE OHERYTLE $ DOELLBAOY $
00'08e"9es" 00T 128°T 000ST'I19T Q0000629 anss puoy jreonppe pasodosy
QU HEEHET [aligeagaiond 009718 QUBTE6ET OOTYLTLE 00 0S¥ 507 00 £61°6T8°T 00 8S8°LE6T O %S 1962 00'TITERST
O0B'EEET O OO SEEE O0OD0'SELE LU ss0e Groudea0E DO U6S S 000000198 QOO00SEL 0000552 BO'000'G6FT IRCE AT
BT TYOp Mot 10§ SI00A Bt 10F 9,0 J€ 359} 9JAK3G 391
£60'C66°CE §  LLLBESOT GE6ZIT'ET L6EPL80Z $ ZHA'ZEYST 8 98E'AI0°ET $ _TRYEESDT £0E'9EL'6T GELBFTET 8 SEILFTST § A4ATAG 3YICE A0 DL LAY JUNOILY
O0000EE Lou'ols"s GOYOs'E 000008 GHI00S'E THLTRRGE BSETIEY grg'pEe’0L B5E'189'R 0199 suopaqaues [EIder
9B LL6'T TOFTLOT BESBIST 9L/ 855 COVSHET YOK'GETE BODTES'E STTE'Y SOFBLFE TLLERTE {susuadica) sonuaast Buyeradouod 3o
9E°CCHT o1 REGFIOT O9E'EEe'T [T TR 016°€08T EPEIERT 18872581 LG6'SH9°L SO0 FCE T sonuoaal Suyesadovou 1mao
- - - - - (51282) {ouess) fgaerors) (¥5¥P1L) - Sd[1 08 wonngiea]
Q007508 fa'Eng 000’505 0007604 OE06 TATIFT 906664 T TTFOOFy 006'LPE SOPET8T $OU ‘B0 JUBWISBAG]
gsasuadxyy sanuasdy Suniadouoy
b6TL9Es SLEDLEDT COL'ERTEL LETBLEYL UESLBL BT B56CAL YT CLL8I9ET UG FEY L1 PRA"EGITT S06°LTER (sso1y sy Spesado
POT9E0°601 BEATATI0T AL LEESH0 R 60069008 CEGTOESR 61206928 GL0G6L6L 9EHI5L8 TIYUEEY sosuadsa Buterado jejo)
0000097 [FOET [T i SRTLIST FEI'949°T 0560967 PRYEENE S0 HIGT LI sduresy
FAOTYS B C8E'FISFE TSTHEY [H BE1085 58 L4 PEY'EE saLieeg
E9TELE'E BOL'EEIE FEYEIE'E FELILE GTFOB8'T [EYPEOE SHYBYLE OELIET LB LU £REETHE
EFFES6EL ISE'6LETE SLYLI6IT 06904011 88195701 91F169°1T BTEBUECT SATZGHIT FLIGEYRE BSE'6TYLL DapBlBRYLIpL T [RIIUY)
|YTLEL'S FEL'0EE'S a16'sg6's 88T0LEF SFLIECT SEUUELEL FEO'E9L0T 0Se'98L 0L QEETEE0L 861's52'8 saapases J1oddng
TIOEEF] LEGVOTEL EEYEEZTL GLYLIETT GTEBLFOT 1S9 SEI'6F9"8 SLYE0LL Fro'86T" I8F'E169 suigsiegonag
PHE RO 6951962 8L GLGTR LV0ZED STTESS'EL 664415721 662194 TE ISY6EETT 5T FFT0L sosuada o wea s300ds 1oy
1620067 [T 6TUTLET SEHGIEL PBLD69°T 1869089 EOR'236'9 L8819 POYEILG BTELBL'E oD wiay yegroyses s uapy
6RO’ 1P LEPR 66€°88L4°L 08112y 96T LYY THFL0L61 ETT'F6T81 SEL0T6F1 BRHEGLGT LITLEYTL sosundis wea) fegeod
sasuadxg Buypenadoy
E0GEOYRLL PLE'GTE L e /86901 FETIOE0Y 6CC 195001 6F 6t L CEFEUE 10 B OEFT66'68 LI6'259RL sanuaant Bugeaada oo
0576082 092's05' 052°604°2 05¢'505'Z 052508 LES°L08'E BLP'PESE 9088452 SLL'BLE'T 2621052 598} jusprg
£52'188'% LEGERL'E 215'¢ig'e POYLRY'E 000'Eer's 21980 LES'0SEY SO9'2I8'E SSLALF' Y LEP'LEF'T
jranesray FERLYLY FET'EE601 jrAd5 =) FLHTSE9T L8715 LA tiFal 06 896" TOLES0G SETLE8'Y seosuods pue s
QUTHT VO0002'T UOU00YE OO008'E STATE'T LBEFELT GLE'986'C BBERTTE BLY'B68'T FI9L1T
004'040'Y 00L'0L0'Y 004020 00L'0L0'y 002 089'E 9CE'BLTF OFL'68E°Y HRLTSEEL 15008 960'609°11
HEFLGF BV L6F BGF'L6Y ASHI6F BOT L6V E6F L1 £21'18s 0669 L9668 g vier] shods S0
£91EEe's SOTLEE'Y GOLTEL'S i) e crat:] CETONY QTEFIP'S ESUFLLS TOT'694°8 L0TE96°L PEE'E06'S HEpasey s Uy
BEVOREG 3 ORE'909°T GIH'GRG L9 ELLCE0DY $  IBTITYEY % LIEREY §  9GEGREIY LEFTLTRS GLRSTY 6% §  650FIrEE $ Hedioog
sanuaary Sugeiadn
CE-FIOZ AL FL-EL0Z Ad £1-T10E A TL-T10Z Ad 11-010¢7 X 016007 60-BOOT A 0-2007 K1 L0900 Ad 90-500Z A1
papslony (e SIH

ThRuanpely

28013407) A3TAKIG JJa(] P10 PUR [LIIMISIY TBa) DAL]

UL UOHRDIOSSY IBY AJISIaasiry

52



STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF FLORIDA
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Facilities Committee
June 20, 2011

SUBJECT: Committee Work Plan for 2011-12

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION

Review the draft Facilities Committee work plan for 2011-12.

AUTHORITY FOR BOARD OF GOVERNORS ACTION

N/A

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

In an effort to guide the Committee’s work over the next year, a draft work plan will be
discussed.

Supporting Documentation Included: Committee Work Plan

Facilitators/Presenters: Chris Kinsley

53






54

‘suoge|nfial pieoy Bunsixe sonpsl
o} Hoge Bulobuo oy} yim 1SISSE 0] Se9)IULWos-qns
sAlRASIUILUPE AJISIBAIUN YSIIgBISS JIIM Jjels pieog

"me| 0} sabueyo uo paseq pepssu
aseym uonenbai pieog o} suonediypow pesodosd
pue AJIANJOB UOISSOS | L7 MOIABI ||IM JJB1S pieog

"L1LOZ ‘L AN aanosye suonembsl
mau sy} Juswadul jjim e)s AlsIaAIun pue pieog

‘$810UsDe B)e)s J0) UB|Cd S J0UIBADD) aUy) Buljsjesed
‘aaleRiul uoonpas uonenbal s Jojjsourys

83U} (Z puy 'so|fU 0} PBHBAUOD 8q 0] 8ARY JOU PINOM
suonenbal Bugsixe Jey) 0s seouslelal Aonie)s
obueyo o} payse sem ainjejsibe oy) Agatoym

181 sBau 0} sojni, e epusbe aapesiBa sit jo ped

se pajdope piecd syl (1 :SUOSESS OM] J0J ‘18ABMOY
‘peredionue uey) spew siam sebueyd 1amad %08
PBJELWINSS UB AQ PROPLOM PIIBID0SSE A)SISAIUN
aonpal |jim suoneinbal mau oy ‘sonoesd uj "LWBISAS
jOJU09 AJOJUDAUL BAIJDS)S PUE JUBIDIYS 8i0W B

o} apinocid |Im pue ‘SaniSISAIUN BLj} YIM UOIBUIPIO0D
Ut padojenap asem suonenbal mau syl 'L L0Z ‘gL
Aew ut suonenbal Auadoud sjqibuey mau ¢ peaciddy

‘pleog
8yl yum Ajoyine
€101 S+ bulysijgelse
usLIBMes

HNSME] WO
Buinssal ‘suonenbau
Ayjioey pejyipoLu

pue mau jo uondopy

‘pouue|d ase saepdn oN

9002

9oUuIs ajepdn s} oU} pajussaudas pue suoinyisul
je 10} doysyopn 1gaq] & Bupnipu ‘ssaooud
QAISUSIXS UB SEM SiU | “Ssuljaping mau ay) paydope
sAey $,109 L1 jle pue ‘pajejdwios sem ssulieping

1980 SNS s.pieog 8y 0} sjepdn sy “pejejdwio)

“ssu|lepIng
19820 ©04g sy} e1epdn

‘sjuswdo|eAap 858Uy} JOJUOW O} SNUIRUOD [IM 4BIS
'slunw 1o} snjels 1duisxa-xe} Jo uoReulwIs ay) pue
sgvd Jo uonezioyiness Bupnou 1oxiew |edounu
8y} o} sebueyo weoiyubis esodoid o3 anuguod

|BAS] |BIODS) BY] 1B SI9YBWADIC "1 10Z ABN JO se
(seiel 1selsiul 1omo) A1SA0S8) SWIOS Yim ‘AJIje|oA
10 S|3A8| |BD1IOISIY 2ouBIBdXS 0) SBNUIUOD 18Yieil
puoq [eddiunw sty “| L0Z-010Z Ui suofoesued) 1gop
sso| Alybyis ves im SNS 8y} jey) pejedionue si |

"S8INSODSIP [BIOURUIY

[EUCIHPPE 0} S98)SNI | pue siollsAon) e paoelgns
BABY piNOMm Jey] siosiApe |eioueli) o] Bunesl

s8|r N3G posodoid Uo palusWILLIoD osje pieog

By "AdUBISISUOY [BLIBIU| PSOUBYLD 0] DBIIPOW pUE
pajepdn aiem SUOIINIOSaY OSSO pue yas alejdis)ioq
splieog oy} ‘os|y JeaA jad aouo ueyl syl

‘1N200 A8y} se papodsal ol so[es pue 'suonoesues}
Buiiosdn Uuo pepincd st uoBWLIOIL ABWULLINS
Agaleym ssaoold e pejuswis|dull 88IWIWOND

U | "uol|iil 0Ge$ 1on0 Bulelo) ‘speasoid puog wol)
pajeAoual JO PBIONASUCD 8g 0] SS|I0.} G paaciddy

sisanbay 199¢1 meN
ANSIDAIUN MBIASY

{uoissnasiq 10y 1) Ue|d YoM LL0Z

s}nsay 6402

ue|d Y40M
JeuiBLiQ 01L0T

SAJIAIY ATRUIILg
CHOT-110T -Ueld SIOM 3dPIUTe) SanI[dey

SI0WRADT) JO pIReOYg



'L LOZ Joj jeaday

010z 1eqwadsq pals|dwon

uoday AbisuTg

‘(sjuswealbe Juswdojenrap sndweo
‘soueInsUl ‘AJajesall) — apnjoul SWay| |enusiod)
:Bunesiy 1deg oy} 1B UOISSNOSI(] BOLLIOTD 10

sBay 0} sajny -~ 819|dwon
pailed — Auoyiny 8a4 4110 - sjedwoou)
passed Ajjenied - Asusunouo) - a)eidwiod Afenied

‘epusbe aajje|sibo
sehliiced 1102

VIN

V/IN

g1 00dd
[eRIUl U1 spnjoul
osfe jim Jequisydes

‘Uoneuiuusjep

NOO4d PUE 45N Uiim

pesu soeds sndwed ulew wioly pepnoxs Ajualnd | ZL-1 L0Z Ul peissa} Joyung aq im pue (40N pue ‘N4 B|ruio)
aJe yoiym ‘eoeds |Baipall pue ysuelq 10} siojoe] ‘Nid) shenuns jueld L1-010Z UM S|ooyos aaiy} ay) | Jojoe} soeds pejepdn
aoeds U0 MIOM 0] SNUKUOD JjB1S AJISIBAIUN PUB Pieog |  JOJ Pasn A|[nJSsooons slom siope] meN "peisiduwion ue jo uondopy
£,9se0I0Ul @8} & 10} Bupse uey)
Jayiel ‘weysAs abs)0n ey 0] sjgeiedwos Ajuoyine
10} yse Ajoslip pleog su) PInoys £I0B} Jusieyip e
ansind pseog 8y} ssop ‘0s J pue ‘AJioyine 4110 1o}
urefe yse o} Juem pleog au} seo(] "WelsAg abejon
8y} Jo} papuedxa sem sa9} Bunsixa Jo asn ay) pue
‘abs)|00) o4 ejuesg s woishg obs10D 8jelg 8y Joy
pazioyine sem a8y uolepodsuel} Mau e 'I9ASMOH 894 411D 8y} 8sealous 0} Ajuoyine
"PBIBPISUOD 8( [|IM SBNUBADI MOU OU PUE ‘XB) |  S8l)IsIaAlun ay) Juelb 0} UolBpUSLULLIOISS pJeog BY)
e S} 9984 & pue ‘93) B Si Siy |, ey} sem usAlb juswwos | uodn joe 0} pajje} sinie(siba sy suonEpUSLULLIODS]
|eJauab 8y W8}l Siy} uo uonoe Aue aye) 0] preocg ylm sinieisiBaT ay) 0] paniwgnsg "L10z "saljjve 4
pajie) ainje|sibeT @y j ~ We) uoissnosi sspiuwo) | Aleniged ul pieog ayi Ag paacidde pue pejeldwon) | &)1 Juspnis Jo Asaing
ue|d JI0M
(uoissnosiq Joj Jelq) ueld YI0M L10Z sHNsay 0L07 jeulbuQ 0102

SSANDY ATewup ]
CEHOT-LE0T *ue STOM SoHIumIo)) SafjIjoe]

SIOWIS2A0T) JO pIeoy




56

a)s

-gem pieog auy) 0} uonewlojul Aljioe siow Buippe
pue Buiroiduwl 0} sa2inosal Bulisixe sWos 9]oAs(
‘OlgISS8v0e uoKRUIoU aiow Bupjew 0] pejesipep
8Je S80IN0Sa1 OU puUe 18UISIUI S} BIA S[QISSSO0R

St UoIJRLLIOUI DB AlaA “SoUBUSIUIBLL BUIINOI pUR
oipouad sasnbal yomym ‘018 ‘eiep aoeds ‘sjeacidde
puog ‘suonjeudoidde jo piooal jBoLCISIY B SLHBURLY
SO sof|ioe 84| [UCHEPUBSWIWOIDY lElS

‘uolelepIsuod
oapIIWIOD) Jo} Jeys pieog Ag pasodoid - Buipusd

‘sisAjeue spsau
Aljioes wWis-Buo) 01 palegjal sswiwos Buluueld
aibsjeng pieog pue D03JH sy o] poddns Buiobup

"003H 8y} 0} Yoddns (eoiuyos)
Buiobug - Buuueld Ayioe4 DD3H Buipusd

"SjUBWale e)ep sanloe)
poalejal JO UOHBIJISSB|Da/UONBILISSEIO 8Uj} aiinbai
M 8lum-a1 uonenbay seNg jeuoneonpa 8y

110z Jeguwsldag Ul uoienbal pasinal ey Jo
uoldope pseog Buimolioy ‘padinbal aq |jim siuswsie
Aol meu -uoiieinbay $8)Ig |euoieonpg “Bulpusd

osinold
aaje|siban Aq palinbal Asains uonezinn soedg

¢10Z 40} 8np NODH PUe 4SMN

40N pue N|d ‘Nv4
101 pa1a|dwos AsAIng Ueld leuoneonps - palajduion

2102 Joj Buiobug

010z 19qWBAON LI pappe ejepLetl aale(sibaT
— AIojusAU} spueT 81elS 43 'ssaiboid u]

Zioe ot ButoBuo ‘L Loz ‘L AIne onp s! Jodal 18114

010z J9qQUIBACN Ul PappE 91epuBW aAle|siDaT
~ Alojusau| Buipiing Alsiaaiun SN ssa4boid uj

(uoissnasiq o} Yeiq) ueld YIOM L10Z

SHNsay 0102

Swaj] 90H pY 0102

SITIAIDY ATRWILL]
CTLOT-110T ‘ue[d JIOAL 9oPIuIO)) SapIoe|

SIOWIdAOK) JO preog



